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dferd @i Rare 2023—24
fy3emery 3R s fohardermy
afafet / aret / gt/ fAeemerdl & fhardam

YT Pl hiYlely

feeell 3R BTl Red Tedel T BRI SRICIC & U Bl AR H FRICIC d (AR
AR I CoiRHl & e faffT el & §Haae § gfaeT YoM &l @ | [T aRyg
& TR, [ 3egeEll 3R M H bRl gR1 Ua fby My A= eril ok Sifg 6l
W R FT B

WRer e

IS, Head! 3R i Wemy Sifheled (b — MEnRT Aegd # S, 2023 3R IR,
2023 AR H AN Bl TS| I IR fTHR 2023 @Y B GWaal & g Her: 161 3R
181 Wiell deal (3 faoelhl dwai |fed) § qien AiTd &1 15 o | BIeseH Wiell & oy B
31214 Wemf o 3R FeFadl U SifcH wden & fow o 9 feweR, 2023 Ifafd H 179079
el SuRerd gu o | T wieretl & UReM T ! I &I H @R AR AD] Bl
TN &_d g A% U o YR g 1Y o |

ICRELIR

foT T 1 gYe & o uRye R 2 SfAifed faxila a¥ 202324 & om Riferd anfie
o IR oI Rure g |

SRRERRENIER)

Feeme =0 U 9 B ¥ Gl fharderdl W &I < 6T § IR SAFegT a1 ffwergs
A ¥ MG [hATdHed B S gHI &l 988 NId | Jal o1 @ folv JaTg &R & 2|
JAH ¥, SADT 6 ST AT I &
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ge, IR 3R W Fag AHAl BT FaleH SRl © | §Y [harbardl &1 g9 aFl gRT WYF
U W e R D < X B A 2

v Fedr faamT

TR T 9 a6 & SRM GeRIl Bl ARHIG: Aels Aegd F el Haei 4 gEr
ST 3R YSH ST IR @M | GeRl & fofy Sfrelier @1 giaer @ FRave a9 e
gV, fORIY S 9 SFTET HeW UgaH U WK & ol YRS AWE AeeIdl UG ax i
T & W, Sl P B TS ORI Gl B AR I@T T &A1 HB T Grww o
TE Bl TS|

fMIT 1 3B T fRIvA 39 YR ©

<+ Yfdew qicfboe oI q81d $ & foly qaur & |

< TS GRI TS YA B 4§ GfaeT Yobi / 9 YARI Bl AG A |

< AT AT & G Sl UH CI AR Bl A DR DT YIGu AT FeId FewIdl Yo Dl
RIeT § $9 T BT Y1gu e |

< f3F1 S fohy SfFeTs el Yo @ A @l GaeT YQH & |

+ FRfia w9 Uiy Fiéfhae ye &) 4 ol o |

o FERI B Gl b a9y Ueeq Affthde @ al el $ Al YBIRIT BT |

< Hiage o & U1 IR W RieeH &1 e g% HR |

& oW & ol AV AcHl & AGE . AR SHA Mgl BT 37 &1 U MenRa AT HRAT |

< TAIRIUE AR Holl Il YOI R TG & Bicl 3R RIER S Y& DR |

<+ R 9eR1 & TM Ul 9wl Yol BT YaM A Y A & SR ger 3y Y 9, 396
foTg Ue Rl G/ AT] AT B oA BT |

<+ 3FcTgT gfauT & AeEd W gewdl & 9l hardarl @ WAd eYd §U Ud dERiRd
fefiica orva @ fory PRER JuR & & |

v el 3R Yhre ey

<+ FRuer R MifE S ‘g Horie ddsee” SR Ml SMa Red goife” @1 Fafia
IR W YHRH a1 o 2 |

% 3@ T HIGHC JPISCE el [d%d WR & 94 U ¥ Suee g 3R U & 377 91N & fory A1
3 R IR W 9o & Ja fog o @ &

% T HIOHC ABISCT STl ol Yell Jiiid Hioler 3R Ye@W & AR | UgH @ foly U4 W
SUdEl B 3R FSune 39 3 wieh™ T SRS WR W gdleg o & forg o
AT R BT ¢ |
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<+ FgAfd droM felicd CRGHRE” | sFd vl &) =9 ol T8, o e diew aik
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v T Srenfirel famT

QI Wl & FA ITAN W SKICYC & RAURSl & Iy Fag doll | g8’ el off
I &, Fifds T Wil SIceye & Y fIa # IFeH < @ ¢ |

+ URYS 3R &F gRyel & g, 2023
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W) e e gr ARG € Uh U9 oS gIse die
#) 4 U6 U 37 IS Bl GHIH

) 3ITlTS YHTOTIS UTGashH

<) R G K

ReRdT AM® 9IS

FRERTA 3l SRICYC 3 DRT FdSced A 3T 1 HREAN RN SR Rerar
RUIE (@ 3R w9 3R) dr wiawelid e SR I (§ U9 i) SFUlerT 3R Yahed o
SIccye & Wewl $l Aihd YAl B & Ied W 99 2022 § ReRal e 9IS (U9 U9
) @1 T R B |

TH U §1 9 99 202324 & forv HferRad foramdam i €

1. 9feIR

2. UMl Wag A HIRYD <YaTeicy

3. 3 U9 Sl TR UIgTshH

4. 9 o9 UICAE @ ol € IR T¥ 3R SR 3R &1 3R TH IR HR & oy 3Mear
qM®] @ BT o foy feefds

5. ReRAT AM®I 3R B3 Y ® 3 ®Y o1

P ECERNCICRRILIN]

SRICIC @I YaE olgid WAl YaeH odidd & |ad Wl | 4% Uik iR Arieed
& T R W A% GfhAe 3R AFTER AR @R @ foft fAReR W aX @ ®, o &
e, faore 3R SET H 9ewl @ oy $I%! Aecayyl & | Wi SR iR S9a dawl
qAT JEe ol W Wafdd o oAl @ 4 WaR IR IR M & ArenaR a0 faveR
Y e oRgidd & AEaqUl &l W YET oldid ANIQE SR/ 3fraT Sresl YaE elRgid
it B ST B DT DI YA BT YR Pl 2 |

ATIS &3 & SUHH THY de

9 # 15 e €, g v ¥ U U Sifasia MR, dreger €1 39 uRve W 9ew @R
Tl O T g e e SIva T Tt IR fa ot i € |

JaT 9 § we

% FSE] gASCH qelfe BT Yebrer

o UH CﬂTg C’HT?;; qdd — ST ud - https://icmai.in/icmai/MI Industry Insights.php
o Uq GTIT%; GTIE; REAR I;hw - https://www.linkedin.com/in/members-in-industry-

committee-4482052a9/

& g i SiFegT 99a 3R SHaes drRisd
o A TP I el wfie
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v IEoR! [doN 9

q¥ 202324 T foly SEICYT 3G IR AdRSceH A feq & TEaN Ao a7 @
TH U — T HAR N @1 oegerd H bRl fhar| R miadl AN gRT AR A
A Wieal @ Ui @ TR BRE @ for M R OWR e W e § | WEaK
AR e & T8 U6 g &I 999§ 31 9 I BRI B SR &F H A g,
dfdd @3 wffaar i € Mo e iR FaeM @ &3 U6 I W ANd edi
|
v 3idRe E=o |
ARG T wef

oM 3 Reel prifen WRT T@ew, arR 890 WRYST (Sgaearsell, Taamgame,
SR 3R HoaRe]) T A1 dexl (@76, 2avErs, YR, SRR, faorarsy,
PR, BER, TedR IR BIAF) & fov 9y 2023-24 & forw B & AT & A ¥
ATARE oET Wierdl & (R & fofy Ty fBam o, faT THaleR 1 a”ls 3. 3R S9™
I B 3R T TRE DI oGl T & folv BRI BT SRINT 3R 3MaWS T W) TS IR
g

ENERCIGIC]

foTT geTery, faeell drafer d e faurTl | o faf= @iT oedral & e s
URYET SR deX & T ywarl o 4 S PR @ § |

T RIS Ufhar &1 drafaae
v &3 IRYg 3R dex gy afd

e a1 f=faRed a1 yem fog v €
o TG, &AIT URYGT 3R IR & dd & 3fRIel Bl qre] |
o TRICHIHE QETN B FURAT |
o A URVGl SR <Rl Bl SKIcYe & Ml Td ARl &1 Surel # FarT v
& forg TreTfRed o |
o WY ®Y Y &l I USAM BRAT AR HIE-SCT el AT WM 29 & e W FYa
BRATg DI G Y& BT |
afafer @ wfafaferr
2023 # &§F-IR IR oD

2024 # LY A€ 3H
IR YA | FLEE B Use
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v DRI WA AR wiHe afffd

H & YR, A TH U R SR PRI AR W &M ofed &A@ oy
HITTCHD, oI AR Arfd AT P& ST,

B BT SIF AHNT B IR STHGdl & ol SIwdar dridd, faar-fams,
T, BTG 3R 3 YBR I = Tfafaferat aem:

TR & T FIAdd SR FEIANT FRAT AT AT B ST 3R e & A
TSN BT SMETH-URT BT,

fafr=1 Rrem, RIR wMef &R Sf9 7l T AN AT R STH 9T o

R & vl W ¥l s, SRl AR fvafdenedl § srfema] s
PRAT;

AT 3R IR & SeRAl SR Aedl & SR PIg 3 NI H_eAT

v 3T THeT IS (R 3R d1)
foRTRr a9 2023—24 @ IR §9D| IR §8 gg ol |

v X AN T

o Tulc UFFR, 2024

o il U9 & a9 @l 741 IS AT
o TR

° ao—\fgﬁﬁ—r[

o BRIV

o IR

o WHR Bl Yl

o TRMM T S

® X[ YlodshH
JYYE DT

o Tl TH <1 W YHIYA UIGTshA

o Tl TH &I W I~Id YA UIGTshA

o iclol 3R fAwafdereral & fory Sl 78 <1 urggshA
St T €1 o UNET 3IR e IR I1d UIGushA
TG SITYR TR YA UIGThH
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Ptz I
o O ¥ UH YHIV YA UIGTHH
o IR fIRUN RIS TR W YHIOIH UIGIHHA

o TGN U 3R Aherd W I~ UIGTFH
o Dieivl IR favafdenerdl & foly e UIGTHHA

v e Meumed
Tfafafer
< QAT 81 ¥/ HaIga e @ oy de aeamd
& T A S A
& BRI R
< I AR o < A
< TRer
3iTelTS ey

v Ul IR

& WOR B FACAl AR G BT TR BT FRY AR 39 W Aad| dRaTg

& M yEeE

< TRIM BT AR A g ARA R AR Jfifdl & w0 4 W\ & FRHA & forg 9 @
s U1 ®I AW AT

& XqHEY

v U9 79 T § 3R Wi 3 9qe ais
TH U W § WIC 3 Ge i & rfciad <1 YreM [oR1d H 61d IS oI YaeH
AT AR B W) fhy 7|

(@) T TF T E Ao R Gehed
(@ TP fory S e ok SIReH weee

T F,

BISNTE 3 T SEICYT 3B DT ABSccd 3AIh oSl
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foxir faavor @) oRar whem wR Rurd
JNg 7

B T SRICYC 3% BT AFEccH A 30T (SRICYS) & Hord faxig o &l
oIl Qe @ g, O Qi 31 W, 2024 1 R & FFAR ot UF, ToqHd A qY
& fory 3 SR &y @ fdaRor T e yarg f9aRvr iR FEeaqul i AIfadl & U AR
vd 3 e gee afed foxi el W Rwlri wifte © (59 ag 39 fadi
foaor & w9 § @@ T E) |

BN T ¥ SR BHRI WAl Al & AR 91 84 QU U WEIGRY & 4R, AR
RUS & 7177 47 @ @ [y S 7 [V TV FFe & gHEl @ S1geY, AN o
AR, 1959 & AR, IOF WU § IR {6 Y Fore foximy fdavon, faiss 31 A4, 2024
@ Rt & SR sRIcge @ foxi Refd, S9a faxilg &R Fwed &R aomd Jd< 9y
& oIy 39D Thg JaE & foly SIS Ah TS IF8ccd A 3T (313 1 T 37g)
ERT O] oIl ISl & ATAR T Fel 3R URGE gReaIv e o & |

I 9d & forv MR

SWICYC & FHlhd ki ARl & e q&ed, 13 ool drRiferd, IR &y
oRyel iR Te | A de’l W fouR axd gy dOR fear man g R 9 te el
URYE, THA: JTIAR & faxiid faarol 31 of@m wer T&l ol T3 |

Al de’l @ foxig IR giege & wufdd foxig faarol 4 WHed @ foy Sy
SE

&3 URYGT 3R e}l @ Aol WAl d I aWipd 2,2043332 /™I %, (favra v
32,18,52,550 / —aRIe . &1 fa= e fomm mm faer o 9w 2

7dt IRT &P IR (€ a8 R W) & Wey ¥

foxirr a¥ 2023-24 @ forw € oM R W e uRye @t s § IRdw we §9 @
fer W U T IR & R & dey H 19,20,000/— T. Th T B §AE T 2
(@t 49,60,000/— %. — RAAR, 2021 H AT 2024 TD) |

I IRA &3 IRYS (T 318 3R W) & ey o

) WA Siied 4 M UeE SR CEE Ao [T | ura Jedied Ruie &
ITER, URYS 7 56,84,605,/— %. DI TRIRT Wl 9fedl # UGSl & <l & wY H
UG B 8| $HD A, 6 HHANAT $ foly Jollh @R fora 1 8 SR el
e # 7 FHAN 2 |
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i)  ORYS 7 Ao @RI IR e Hufwdl @ Refd @fRkd g fawo @i gy
RepTS 1 T Yg—@ra el b1 & | a6 & IR bl Guirdl Bl $lg 4D
[T TE b mar g1 qonf, usee e |uRnl @ IRReR JIR @R @ B
IR gt Fufl o1 Hifde FTT R @ B |

S AFIARI & foiTg J41a &7 U Tl ST o1 e |
T §RIcye 3G aes adrSced 3l 3fear gR1 N fovy v oieiee AFd! (T Q) @
AR IO oIl GRE DI §| S AN B ded AN e T BN R @ faxi
freRor HIT @ o e @ fog o wewn @ RmeR § foffde o 78 2 & Ol

Aifr el & JTER SWICYC & WA odl Wied ©, Ol faxiid faaRon 31 g ol
e ¥ IR 7 IR T 39 Sremell & JFER 3 fRieIRal 1 @ €

FART favary © & o oiar wien ey g9 o fdv 8 7 Wi g ek R I W B

foTT U@ SR YeM a=A & foly Swyad 2 |

9 BT g

g1 fAfeIRad W &I el axd 8 @ —

@) TR & ded ¥ ¢

T fewfom &) fewolt 9. 2(3f), & I SN @ b 49978350 /— %. @I ART A Ty
g NI & ey H A & @Al 4 U &, e |9y # I7d 6 991 & IRM 1 IS
B Tei fobam AT B/ IRY fbar AT ¥ 1 &R 39 UBR § -

1.

)

fagRor TN (%) fewoft
LGS 4,99,78,350 ShaR DI YIAM Bl g 3w IRT e
el 13 G[ells, 2016 &1 566334 /— ¥uy  off
o 3R 17 ST, 2016 BT BT 22,400 /— BUT
off | denfa, emRiye anfdgem aferer 4.
2021 @I 613 B T8d W I I B
THE 915 Wfed B |
Gl 4,99,78,350

74l WRd &3 URYE (€ TS IR W) @ |ay A :

i) orar fewfort @t fewol |, 3(7), S 414,918 /— %, BT & S TH W IN B e
4 7, (A1 31.032024 &1 RAT & QR Ydid &1 & 2, forgar Aifds < €1 wd
THTOT U3 3R MTdR UIed & WX & 9 H fRT H aRafdd o & ded o

e fhy S @) STeRd 2
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i) oar fewlral @ fewolt | 3(m), S 10,00,000/— . @I AR F SAYH YA
fQeTih 22.11.2023 I YaHTR AR Bl 4341 AR A A & URMS &g & fofy fby
9 & wag # 2, fiTid 31.03.2024 31 RIT & ITAR AN 7 |

IR MRd &P IRYE (Sy 98 AR ) & Wey #:

ol fewfirgt &1 fowuel 6. 4 (@), S I8 Uil § {5 67,30,000/— %, & U S1d GREH!
Rd &3 IRy &1 @rar feal H uedid @ v@ 2|

ST MR &5 Ry (T 318 3R W) & ey ¥ ¢

i) o fewfrl @ fewol | 5(a) (iii), S 145710 /— %, B AR & S T o9 Dl
dfdd W @ Hee W 8, dd 999 W of9d 8, ofd aiRal § o8 waee w6 e
T %, Fife gRYS @ fIER 2 f5 guR B9 & 915 A @R @ S|

i) ol fewlrl @ fewol E. 5(®) (iv), 9 1,67,690/— . B YA T < SR
HERYT BT 15,488 /— ©. BT AR T S & Fayy & 2, Oy dfewy amm m7 B,
Afhd 9% folt ®1F grae™ 781 fovar 11 &, R uRee &1 faor & f6 9 3@

Tl TR o |
TR W AR Y19, QUR YO, F0 3R AH Afe & Feg 4 3fd @ e g T80
T el
g Al & HaY H AN I e el g |
facia fqaRo & forg yeed @ RreRar
SRICYT BT Y9, AN ol@Iel SFRM, 1959 & QR 9 foi fdavvll @7 TR &+
IR 32 IR T W URA I qAT UG O ATITId TG, I MG AT & oy

SRR B, e W foxi fdaRoil &1 IR a1 &1 9@, & Tod 991 9 49 8, 918 d
G ¥ 3l g& 9 foy T e |

g foRf faqRull @ IR &R+ 4, J6Ee AMeR HRI & ®U § ORI W@ A SRICYT B
FHAT BT ATheT B, AMBHRI GIT | FRd Al S JAT AL Yhe I qAT AMBR]
WA BT WA & AR W 9 qF ST =T $ foly THER B, 9 06 & Teed
SEICYC BT URFAIYA dx1 J120dT SHST YT 98 dxl Bl S0P 9 &l YAl S U U4l
PR B 3Tl PIS I THGIT [dbed 7 & |

UG SIS B ORI a1 Uik @l <Ee & foy RER §
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fexiia foamorl ol o e @ oy oian ahierd &1 e

BART Ie¥ 39 91 B foly ThId AT UK &_AT & [ o gy (ki faRor wgeayul
Teld A ¥ gad & 7T SRS 1l 9F & HRU & iR o werd o v Rud I
1 2, RO g W e | oW ST VT TRy TN & ol I8
P TR &Y & b oRar e Wee AFeT B SRR ARG BIS o W Iy arg
TEAYUT Ted JAM AN[E 8 O IS ST Ul oM ol 2 | TTeld AT, rarel Sidl 9%
U B ol § 3R 98 Hgaqul Al Sl &, AlS JFeIT AT Aal qHY wU W d g9 ki
IR & SER W IuEdel R forg Ty aniies okl &1 wifdd @R §ad © U
THETT GHGT 8 T © |

G Haell AFGl & TR U ol Wiell & 91 & ®Y H g9 UYeR W07 JeH Rd @
AR QI oIl W S IR YRR Hog Pl gIbR W | A E, &

focfr faaRol @ ARl T A @ SIREA @ UgdN IR AMded axd &, 9’ d
URIES! SFdT b & BRY F B, U ARGAI & fory ofar uvienr vicrfshanati &1 e avd
g 3R U ol WNIEN Wied U bRd &, ol EAR A @ oY U AR Y $RA b fely
Tat &R 3fud 81| B Aeayet Terd G B AT T o U G SRgE, O a9 g,
qH & RO B aTel SiRgA 9 4 Sffd BT § iy daerS] § MelTd, STerTa,
gl

ol Qe U @A @ foly SHeR U & o 39 uRRfodl # Swged @ ofde
ERICYC & AfARG R0 &1 o) TAEHEIRGT W W T oA S FAIo @ (g T8 2 |
UG olgihe Il B IUEId $1 oAb BT SR oGib SAAMI BT THAIA BT
3R Yge gRT 5T Y AT Yehe ol ol |

YeE §RT AMGRI ARl BT of@ibd & AR W AR UG ol Wl & ed $ 3R W
TR IUANT ox & e § IS Sy Mebrerr fob war vl uReefodl sferar Rerfodl @
Tae | SARETar AeE 8, My Uh dMeR! HI1 & WU H SIS R BRI BRAT AN
G B AT R AEAYUl Wg 8 Ahdl §| a8 Jg My e € b th waiw
ARTar AN & @ & foig faaRol # W gacaxtll & foy R oiam wie ol
RUIE § AP Iooi BT AT BT & HAdT IS VAT YHSIdRYl AT &1 off &5 3fU
I BT FEAT F| TR (I TN o e @ KU @ aRg d@ wr feey Qo
e Wy W IMIRT © | JAM, Afdw @1 aRRefaar siear Refodi s&icge & dMaR
T & B H TR T G S RO S Fh ¢ |
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1,119,336,310 | e geb 1,172,483,882
52,595,256 | @c @ 3 63,638,312
4,892,200 | IR G Gxe el JATOT U BT G AR Yo 3,403,149
5,440,671 | faxforar & fam 2,384,043
3,727,934 | Uy A @l st 17,707,648
1,235,176,071 1,304,622,758
feooft |15 :
TRIET 3R 3 Yo :
31 A, 2023 BT TET 31 91, 2024 Bl
T & forg firg T 9§ B forg
. NUT 2.
302,528,692 | W Yo 333,644,279
6,157,000 | SR U3 3 A4 & oY Fob 7,437,908
308,685,692 341,082,187
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gvclcyc A hRC JPrdccd Ah glsdl
facirr faRo & W Y@y fewfr (W)

fewoll ¥.16 :
RO &
31 A9, 2023 BT 31 19, 2024 BT
T ¥ $ forg ferevor T ¥ $ forw
300;03,987 ESEE N 317293,684
13,437,010 | PN TG He & forg Faamr o1 3ferer 9,861,775
26,286,122 | HHANI s (A & forg e @ serer 28,156,708
46,075 | FAR! Raar (R @ forg fared o sfrem 11,674
15,043,620 | DHARI SIS THIBRV b foly [ATGT BT AT 11,138,425
898 378 | PHANI TG ThHaIGR—[deA 2.615582
8,432,367 | fafdcar < 8,907,614
2,863,485 | DHCIRAT BT G AT Hewl 3,021,144
1,437,228 | ¥R 0 T Al JeRE 3R § S Uef 31 FARIET0T R 1,579,879
567,034 | RN AR faer (T3 3R ) 846,796
369,515,306 383,233,281




[ATT [ —ETsE 4] AL &0 TSI © AT

T IRICYCE 3G i< fdSced 3 gfear
facia faamon & T wawy fewfrat (@)
fewoll @17
FrIfe g
31 A, 2023 BT 31 A, 2024 BT
T 99 @ forg faor T 99 @ forg
8203,332 4501 TG o Al 67,317,924
7,067,164 | P, TR, G 3R B 9,837,384
1,880,720 | 3NARa o T Yoo 1,895,300
10,523,080 | fagd TR 13,201,224
280,487 | SRR Y 307,518
10,323,935 | W 3R & 3,260,076
451,108 | 9 352,016
11,311,762 | ™ 3R XG—@W 10,747,121
1,357,064 | PR &Y 1,454,718
7,820 | S ST XIRT R Tt 7,820
8,780,220 | fafi® FuR 5,864,645
735,187 | 9% FuR 861,575
6,669,924 | PYX TEXEG Y 6,868,394
2,512,558 | S GUd @AY 4,477,108
3,644,220 | <G HaHl &g 3,994,408
566,718 | J® T4 U@ 520,003
234,069 | T o 236,550
234,000 | STOI0A SR 289,630
1,999,517 | PHANI Bl 3,602,231
7,383,047 | foxmn 9,168,657
65,683,430 | TIRIM® TR 104,452,397
7,390,077 | fafer =g 9,864,821
158,141,238 198,581,521
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T SWICYC 3% PR AFSced A i
facia faamon & T vawy fewfnt (SINY)
WY H.as:
TR Y
31 AT, 2023 Bl 31 HId, 2024 Bl
T 99 @ foru faazor T 99 & foru
i L
192,392,183 | Wien a1 91,892,216
78,244,190 | whers @1 TS 85,899,927
29,944,026 | e v @ 60,537,005
126,887 | #AiRge difiT Al & fov wiem = 14,250
1,233,243 | REPR T4 REPR IR0 I 1,489,769
301,940,529 239,833,167
fewol 19
A0 € BRFA T T AEAD] DIl
31 A, 2023 BT 31 AT, 2024 BT
I 9§ & forg e T 9§ B forg
kd kd
10,294,371 | &rer &g 10,861,046
56,827 | Wdic dey [RRhR_¥ied TS RER 99,308
9,080,516 | &= AINTd /TSI el I 5,790,327
17,651,068 | Al &g — R /X 24,184,386
3,774,283 | qaiidl vt fadd 3,319,930
40,857,065 44,254,997
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T SRICYT 3B PRC AFbrSced 3h 3l
foxig faaroll @ 9T Ty fewfor (S)

fewdit ¥— 20
feritg faaroll @1 R &R & fory SR

faxTg fIeRol @ AN oEidd AMGl & TR NI oRadTel IfeIH, 1959 @
FAGNT |0 Urae 3R O q6 F¥AT 7 FEl AT B, SUNH AMR W
AMER TR & w9 ¥ URIRIG a1 W1 & ded IR fHar S 2|

HHDT DI RN

qEITeTd (dlcted), g focoll B, 3N &3 URYel dr <Xl & faxi
feRoll BT T TE §R—4U UY, §—YU o—adl 3R ARV ouTe R /
(81C) B MaTaax TREURRAT IR IRl &1 F9H 7al & 90 ®U | WA R
Tl A T 7| SR JMawre e e M § |

et B UGN

ol ol @1 IR &R # yeee @1, 9¥ & fow gfoq @ 78 oRwuRmEr &k
AR TAT AT D TS A AR FF B AT H AberT IR AN A e
B §| yaud a1 ae w2 e focly Rl o 4R e § W sgAe
fodeyet ok qawTd B 2| R sraftrt # uRerm @ SeeR) frerh &/ Fmffaa
fpy o € 99 ol # anafde uRuE R AT & i A SR SR W
grfad aRom =1 8 Fad § |
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NEEC RG]

qerl | U Pob

ARl | U Y9 b B AR W H S o g

BT TollR Yob

Bl ¥ UK YSildRUl Yo Bl BT Bl GSlprYT Bl 3R I e 8 W
RIGRG A & WY § A A T g |

q1fich TR Foob

qffe FedT Yo @S9 9 H A R e g o af 9 3 e @
AR w9 AR AR BIgFR, FTA U 81 I 2 |
fareror goe

B BT USllEd B 3R YA U 8 WM W URed 3R AlRge R
Yo & Ay ¥ Iod Bl AN fHaA1 I g |

PEANEIRIREED]
W9 YHTIET Bl fbell SuAG BT fHA PHg W eaand fhar W g,
U YA @1 fodl & e # oa bl 77 fohar o7 2 |

TRIET Yech

Qe e Dl Vel e St & forg Ay o S &, o orafy 9 3
aiferT 2 |

BRIHH Yodb

V¥ by &R W RIGH Yo H IIoIed Bl A= 6T i1l |



[ATT I —HETE 4] GIESEEIRIE EE RS R IER)

33

d®l & U WA SISl @ Hag H FEH 3G Bl gHrT JIRT AR AR
P €A | T g W QMR W A B S & |

@) 9 M
frael & o @Y, pTaE @ wid & sfeR T 8 W A f

ST 2 |

I B IO MR R =9 fhar o 2 e fefafad amal &
37eTaT URee 3R AiRae I ¥ efdd &g e € : —

(i) e & affe el & I fOdRy fhy 9 W AN et o & |
(i) 79 o 3 39 I 9§ o A e o g, o 9§ 9 @9 fen

T R |

FUfd, GIF 3N U~

HURY, FIF SR IWER DI AN H W Wiad e iR Mad g, afe ag @, @
HF PRD T a1 TN 8| AN H TR D PIFG 3R Dl 3T AN IS 8, S
IRl Bl 59 SR ST & fou gqdl dRida Rofd & aF @ foru @
iR

s e

3 URATRIET H PRCy W¥CIdR WA &, W ANd H W G uRenEd ik
fael g1, Al B B, S ¥ dRo I HA1 T 8 |
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YOI B Wi W)

W oRGuRR & AT R fhar T g, W S9e Jufed ST & fol IR ARl
2, S ol B W W @ T8 and H ¥ g, I 3E 8, B B axa
fohar 7T B |

TCUEN / UReIEA

(@) HURl, 9 SR SURGR qAT [ UNHUREAl TR HeUer 3 &R AR,
1961 & ded M AQl W 3afeRad e Ugfy W Y fomm 7ar 2|

(@) <ioiEies Y &1 oI i FaY & IR ORI Sl 8 | diosles A B
SRR & forg g forar T Hiftem, ot erafdr & <R gamr o 2
i fowmn, afe 98 &, S99 & @9 @ wy # 99 forn T B, e forg
3 Yo <T ¢ 1aT I A E |

(M R B gl @ fo, o av 4 3 @de T € 39 9¥ ¥ 40 ufoR W
TeIgr foar o & |

GEN

qrafafy e e AT W OAF T 8| e, S <t el & qed ¥ e el
fREe &1 a1 |a Ry @1 fRtae & 7179 &R @ g 4 foam 73 7 |

TR

YHTIE Wi, AU AT 9T TR i 3R fIarfOredT i gaaie ol onrd far fad
Il AT W B W ATBT ST | G SN AN R AT BRI B AT Bl
frRor ARG 3fNIT QMR W iR TR &1 ARG &1 IR hRe—g-hee—3MSe (T 318
TP M) & AR W a1 o 2|
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UTaE, JATHRTDG <SR 3R MHRAS gRTuR

()

(i)

for=dY Taer @1 9 AT AT ST © ;-

(®) 9 TG SN & BRI IoH R &l

(@) I8 9wifdd & & onfdfe o drel GamEl BT STy, degdl @
fiuem & forv amfér g, e

(M v v A @, drar o IR | R forar S wwar 2|

frfoRad & forg @18 wTau w7 =18 @ —

(@) @IS TN WG TeAa, S T Sl 9 S g8 @l SRk e
Al 3 U Srerar a1l SAREd Wl JMIGHI, W SRICYT B
qof fRIT # €1 &, @ eI oferr | B W gfe g,

@) @S U gaar areddn, o faTd gde § IO 8 olfd A e b

ST, qreadT BT fAUe™ & forv Srufera &N srerar Sregar @l }If
T Uep fAeqeira Sfga el fobar i eheT |

Ul qEIAIY SBREES SHEIRAT d wY H Uhe B TS & bl
e AT JfaTel W BT T 8 IR dad aregar & S 3
@1 MG f&ar T4 8, e forg anmidies ol arel Sl &1 Ud
SRl IS v A & Y ST e |

MR aREufeqat @ oy faaeon & 9 o 9= fhar a7 g 8k 7 &
Udhe fohar 77 2 |
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facefl a1 o 39

focell qaT # oF <A, I oF oF Bl IR B IRIG B Jferd A &) W e T g
difed 7l S GaT I T B aRIG Bl YEferd SHfod & B SWIN IR & AR 7 |
URM H Tol/ qHd Aife #&l & MucH & Hey H I A &) H SR @I, 3/
&, ST W A B, % wU W O @i H Y S U § 99 [ H o 3R @ &
foreRer # A= foram T 2

HERT A

i) 31 Plfeld ™
3y FIfcTs FHANT o B I JAfT & SR <41 fby T ¥ & ®U § A
foar T 8, f 9 <rar 9 @) TS A US| B E 2|

i) IR @ SWId & A
ISR & IWIT & o, o 9wy [fe, I=gC), S@aarer Tahdaxyl sas Jeared
AR feeel @rafe den € o § & fory Jo aF] ueM fay U &)

gREuREl @l afd

URE o U @ ARG Bl ORI & Mied g 1 afa @ fow adllen &1 g 2 A S
gReufcRl @ ffd Il I axgea R ¥ e B & @ afd @ A far S
gl

I R R

SICTC DI PR ADTIH, 1961 DI &RT 11 S A1 YISd GRT 126 & T8 AFIR F BT
UG Bl TS T, 3T AIR B folv B aem el fhar M7 2 iR RIfid R <Iar/
Rl & foru oIS UTau 3avde el FHsm T ¢ |




[ATT I —HETE 4] GIESEEIRIE EE RS R IER)

37

A yd 3 /I

U 7 3N gd Al # ARl fGaRol &1 daR w1 H Ffedl s1@r gai & HRO gaHH
Ay H IO A Gd BT Al DI AT AR I B fAGRT H AT ¥ e AT T 7 |

S U9 &1 g UY 9 W STer

femies 31032024 @ R & oFAR off w1 <& e @fec &1 AV, W WY @ T,

SIIHR @i H STell 47 2 |

.

1.

gl W fewfor

HHDT DI RN

SEICYE & wHidhd faxiiy fdawell & o e, 95 fdedll dRied, IR
&3 IRYGl SR Ue A H1d A Bl e H @R IR BT T 7| S 4 Ud
IR JUfd TeAR & ol fawer orar Wit 781 21 A AR, A e,
RITRIel, 9aRT Wi RS, TR — ®ER, TREER, 186 — FBIR, IR,
AEYR IR IR @ g fQawol & o 9 89 & RO 3% qad 9y d
e 7 fean | denfy, wRfed foRfe faawol @, aqHe 9 @ ofidel H 3
e} & [T 99 & Iuee 3NFS MHA 7 |

A & Fag o
®)  HRES AT (G UeH eI B TE)

i) fot arfifram, 1994 IR Sy W o v < MR, 2017 @ =,
AN &Nl &€ 501,68756,/— %. ([ATd a9 H 50168756/~ %) &
AT AT FR AN 5,01,68,756 /— %. (fTq a9 H, 501,668,756 /— %)
g, R ¥ 3762657 /—%. (f1q a¥ #, 37,62,657/— %.) &I A,
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ST HIT BT 75 YA &, 99 b QRM YA $R & T © a0
IR o A & TEd WA W T F wU A E T F
$RICge A AN & Rgeh Ud il SRR @ & o W opft fig
3T 9T B |

i) M@ ded Rfve @ @ gfoufd edRal @ g #§ e
A & | foed IRgd BR W U @ O 7 | T @t @
AR, RIS 99 RN 4 987 oF Ay & forg dfd a1 1w
7| fTid 31 A/, 2024 @RI & AR, AT AT AR, A
FHANGT & @d H O ®, a8 2861.868/— (g 9 #

2330216 /—) |

AP $ e H e AGR AWFIH 1961 DI GRT 11 & QY UfSd &R
126 & T80 UM @I g 8, TaJaR AR & oY I3 UG el fbar
T 7| ARAMT TR URHURT TN SN & foy FI5 WIaw™ Sawd el
LRI

SIeYe BN < T W ReaR Wl faf qranent gt yrfoa @ S @
AR URYE & MUY & FJAR dbi H WEe @ H WG Fael & 6 ol
ERIEC IR

190,4846,113 /— . (fOTd a4 # 189,81,79,004 /—) @I WA A1 (AT
HreAdhar 3R el Hrafe)

3 3R IR # TH A Y, 9RA TWHR ERT AR 7 3 & HRO 44 IRYS
qeg W 9B 1,36,097/— %, (1@ 99 136,007 /— %) WA € @R
QA H AT AR 2 |
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T)

aifdfee o/Er gdem Yed (S vE O wfd) 545210/— %, (fawd @y
586,869/ ®. & AR U & Hag H WARH o Wiel Yol Bl
Bl |

"TRICYS b BRC Jbroced A(h 3y HHAN dfaw [ g I
wfasy fAfd @1 afee™ we fohar S 2

U B YA JARIH, 1972 (I WARE) & ded UGSl & Heg o
STRN & g =gl A ¥ RA Silad 91 7 @1 QT 1Y SiReE &

YR R A=Y fhar oirdn 2|

JTHT THAIGRY B Ge H SHGR] Bl Ul fls A s & U Il T
FAIET AT Thaaxyl B & oy oM @& sMR W A faa
ST 8 |

Ry (1 amg <1 91 o) | g T ol Bles q@S W IR, T4l Hag o
Tl G9g Scpred] D Had Bl FHIOT 98 201213 H I AT T o7 | a9
2013 # ToRId degaR W foff @1 g9 fmi & fou ffder & 13 o
URYE & MU & SF AR, Had &1 M &1 2015 H 48 o fadr T o7
VI @ GIREGTR, O NS TR & WY 3 AR & i 9@ oa
RRIEIN

g9 T Rl @1 e QAU M & BRY, ToRIS BEgaRM, URAGH B
SHER W AFAY HERY, 94 @ W UH AWl SRR o, e gREee
AT AN, SURRY, Y 2017—18 H URAGH & MG FHI & BRYT AT
¥ glg B |aHl JHE B foly 4,70,40917 /— . T 1@l fobam 7T |

JeRid, feAd 7 3, 2021 @ AR RMIGRT gRT 7 73, 2021 ¥
TERTSl DY Bl 8148937 /— B. + 18 URIed Ufd a4 & R | & &l
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qars UIRG fbar| 36 AR 3@Ie & Rge® RIcge g did I
TR & T Ueh el SR Bl TS 2 |

A AW ITd e | e fadid 13 AT, 2024 @ QMY @ ded
fGTd 7 31dl, 2021 & 3(ATE W HRATY G AR SRR W A5 T,
9 [ SEICIT (AMAsd / ATRIdIad]) 3228257 /— %, B JIRT F I(ATS
ST X 3R oA I 32,28,257 /— B, W 12 YIORIA B WX W AN &
W H UH TG 46 B 46 MRS WD N, Il A B ARG Bl
Rerfd & SI[R 1883275/~ %. B |

IT SR qX ORE ¥ of afeal o Uy e & TS |

SRICYC o O 3R fAHaR, 2022 @AW BT AFAL UET ARAMAT PR B
forv T o vF dfecT W forfd, (T o0 U) @ Jaw o off| 338di wem
AMfa T fTd 14 SO, 2023 B RN T 966 # T M UA ERI
HAYSHMG WAl YSH @ H Sh & WEa@QUl Seaidd @ Al B 3R
139940122 /— 3. (ST T¥ <1 Afeq) &1 A I G 2 |

fo=iT @y 2023—24 @& SRM, S, 2022 We 3@ & Fog H U 37 T A
571933/~ . (Sl U9 < Wed) &7 74139 U< il o, Foras U il T ol
[T AT Gl SRR 14,05,12,055 /— %. (S 79 < 9fRd) B |

foRfr @y 202324 & IRM, W WRGR ¥ UE Wl @ IS,
4167730/~ %. (35 URWIG MR Hed, R 140512055/~ . W 18
yfoerd St U9 ¢ e el ©, Ui 11,90,78,013 /— %) 3R AR IR @I
el & 915 U 31 TF Bl 13,15,81,205/— . (S T4 <1 AlRd) & R @l
YA SR fhar T o |
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)

SISy GRT SRATT — MU ol s, 2021 3rafdy o aifeg Hegad!
3R 3ifeH e F B forg Srfafda o T o | S {3344 uRvs gwT
AT 22 TR, 2022 BT 8% 46 H A AT AT &, W fF 7 AE, 2022 I
T gg ol 3R 33541 wem WAl =, & 7 A6, 2022 F1 g5 AT oD
¥ g A fear f& SRty — Sgenua @ Jard ddimeHe T8l oY, s
fery gIeye @ fawaR, 2021 & oy sifcw wlem 7 facia gonm 3R I6S fofy
Y BRIHH G TS 3R IRUEG I H M Bl s |

focig a9 202223 & &1 A T A 24,22,75,900 /— %. (S ww < Afgq) A
®T U STAII YT AT T | UNIE {9 4 SR & 3F9R, 50 iR
foet IR @7 e SR S Mo forar AT o SR ¥W 50 gl IR
1026,59,280 /— %. (3 TH &) Bigaw) Id o TS| SRATH — ML |
[&Id 15 AT, 2023 BT 12524432080 /— ®. DI AN & U TP B
Afew fam 2

foRfr @y 2023-24 @ IRM W URGR ¥ WW edl @ dIG,
12319114 /— 3. (6 Ufded MR ¥ou, R 242275900/— % W 18
yfcerd S o <1 IS ©, 31fd 20,53,18,560 /— ¥.) IR AN &1 & Herdl
@ 91C AN — IMSIATT DT 1047,12,466/— B. (O TH & Ald) @I
YA SR febar T o |

faer (Sege @ =™ ¥ &l foby M)

i) s Al T TS B Scddl WHIE Tol H 9w H 10 /- 3. UAS
@ 6 AR WA €, o SWEege & T ¥ W ¥, dfeT ‘ege
TG BT FBTSced A 3fear & Tffoa & Tmi J €|
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i) 3 W W U A USliGd Aedidddbal W6 § 9w H 10/- .
YRAB B 1 WR AN €, O $Ige & M | Tl 8, efdd
TRICYT 3t ke Freced 3t 3fear & fifoat & M & £

g)  fom v 202021 & IR TN 36,35,000/— . B AT ¢ A qE@H B
M A Y SRR @fdd g7 @ SR FO UG S0H WY B S qu
e & forv AW & wU § Xy B

u) &g gRYel 3R <Xl & oy =re] <gdell @ Heg H By MY At yraem
& folT 15,56,53.261 /— 3. @I g=RIRT Radd o T &, R M7 3R & o
# grgfod sl gd aree (Raa) § wnfier foar w2

%) foxig a¥ 2022—23 @ fory ot FufRa oRwuf &1 Wfae amy foar
T oT| S RUC & JER, &R / R gd FuiRag |ulky a7,
T 2,24,109 /— %, B NI &, 3R S @i 9l § 9% W STe T R |

Q) a9 2016 & R UGHHA bl YEIHl ¥ HelRd 9% G 9 b GRM 9
WA STl TS B, S 3545,363 /— %, B |

T fidie 31 F/E, 2024 B R B AR §EICYS B UM SUAR GATl b
AUR W, JATERNOT "GeH, Y IR 7ead IegM fadrq ARIFTH, 2006" &
gt g uRMRiT Ged Sedl oIk oY SeMl B I & fog DI eI
IR 9 W &N el 7 |

3. STIAEIRA P Gey §

®) IRICYC B AT RN WRI 6 T 0 & AR § Az AR Al 7 fr10 &
fog 9 A1 Ig 3aId SR a1 &R 7 & RIdeR, 2021 W A1, 2024 TF B
afy & forg vt dF omg | B IR a9, 9 fF 49,60,000 /— %. BN E |
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AHRAG AT — dY 2014 H SRICYT 3B DRE JBISced A il ol
g g R A & Rael® §B ey HHAIRGT §RT U BT 91 QIR bl
T 7 S o W dfed 21 a8 @ SRE Reify # agerma & gam 71 AHen
4T B 3R 3ifcw fvia oM & 91e @ral § enavde yrd, AT dIg @,
ST |

A ST U Wi A9 H 414,918 /— . DI AR 31 ", 2024 D Ry &
IR TR TS T | UG ARAIS S < T YO AR MER U ¥
SWICYT & M H fd9RT & U aRdfdd w9 | O [T & 91 [ TR A
fAer= febar ST |

4381 AR A W B WS AT B oY B 22.11.2023 BT R AR B
forg 3 & w9 | 10,00,000/— . @ AR BN YIAH fBAT T AT, WA
feeid 31.03.2024 @ R & IR SrAHARNNTT T 2 |

fafder SeRT gIRT 86,803 /— . @I R BT Ry, o W o 999 & @l
el B, gRifohd o T B |

fafder < ERT gRT 15,32,585 /— 3. @l I3, O 31 H, 2024 @ Rafd &
IR 3 q W D qHI W TSI g &, I WA el T8 &

fQetiep 31 A, 2024 @1 RAfT & FTAR 13,07,101/— 2. Bl 3= YA A
2013 9 9 ® Ul B, e ol @l *IRT Suael T8i 2, S9 98 Wi
STl T § |

S TS AR W & Fey H

®)

U6 ¥ U W U W U 67,30,000/— %. & M, O A3 — Tl
gREuREl 4 g9 T & [ O)E W ey A TS g
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g <IAdI H TS TS 4,20707 /— . DI 9GeHIg R & o yrau g
S TA gRT AR fohy 9N W GRIfehd foby G Riifs I8 o arg
T 2| T YR, I8 IR Y@ & W # qGer g T8 ¥ R U
S T T JFAIGA & QM 92 @I STl o @ A7 S ¢ |

T 38 AR ) & ey #

)

(i) fa=ties 31 A1, 2024 @1 R & SFTAR 0.99 G %. D R ACX & UG
e UV B B BRYT &F b @ H Ul o, ol e B S ey
gl

(i) TT oM IR W & I B folv oI KT — TF oS AR W & d8d
fAf= dexl I FHI AT TRl 34.87 AG B I AR G T A,
R forg awe’l 9 918 g ora =18 g 2|

(iii)  UTIRMSRIRE W 145,710 /—%UY & ISV I ANT G617 8 |

(iv) 167,690/~ %. @I AT < T3 UfRfd ST 3R 15488 /— T. @I & T3
i IR 3 auf & o s wHE & THrT 8 SR W A T B

3@ gd 3

() 399 9a S W fUsd 9§ & Gau H @ @ foly 339752/ 9.

ot 1

(ii) s fo=i 99 2018—19 @ forv St v &1 YHIVIA B @ fofy 51,000 /—
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(i)
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THE INSTITUE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA
NOTIFICATION

Kolkata, the 27th September, 2024

No. G/20-CWA/9/2024.—In pursuance of Sub-Section 5B of Section 18 of the Cost

Accountants Act, 1959, the Annual Report of the Council of the Institute and the Audited
Accounts of the said Institute for the year ended 31st March, 2024 are hereby published for
general information.

KAUSHIK BANERJEE, Secy.
[ADVT.-111/4/Exty./530/2024-25]

65th, ANNUAL REPORT, 2023-24

The Council of the Institute of Cost Accountants of India takes pleasure in presenting this 65th
Annual Report giving the achievements and activities of Departments, Committees, Regions and
Chapters of the Institute.

v

Abridged Annual Report 2023-24
Directorate and its Activities
Activities of the Committees/Boards/Cells/ Directorates

v' President’s Office

President’s office at Delhi and Kolkata facilitates coordination of various activities on
behalf of the President of the Institute with Departments of the Institute and external
agencies. The Department also carried out various tasks, and jobs assigned by Council
Members, Former Presidents and Higher Officials of the Institute.

v'  Directorate of Examination

The Foundation, Intermediate and Final examinations were held in offline centre-based
mode in June 2023 and December 2023 term. The Examination was conducted in 161 and
181 examination centres (including 3 overseas centres) for June and December 2023 term
of examination respectively. In total there were 31214 examinees for the Foundation
examination and 179079 examinees had appeared in the Intermediate and Final
examinations of June and December 2023 term. The results of all examinations were
published smoothly adhering to the time schedules and conforming to the standards.

Finance Department

The input from Finance Department is Audited Annual Accounts and Audit Report for F.Y

4

2023-24 as approved by Council.

Directorate of Studies
The Directorate is mainly focused on students’ related activities and always striving to

serve them better by performing several activities through online or offline mode.
Presently it is having six distinct wings:

(A) Academics

(B) Administration

(C) Online Coaching/E-Learning
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(D) Skills Training
(E) Practical Training
(F) IOTP

While Academic wings of D.O.S is assigning with the duties to develop the skill of the
students through knowledge, comprehension, application and analysis of various academic
related matters, the Administrative wing of D.0.S administers the other functional
activities such as students’ admission, coaching, revalidation, exemption, training and all
related matters. Some activities are jointly handled and looked after by both these wings.

v' Membership Department

The Membership Department has continued to improve and offer seamless services,

mostly through online to members throughout the year. Maintaining the continuity of

DIGILOCKER facility for members, especially for availing online Members’ Identity

Card together with the processing followed by grant of membership on every week, the

existing special features which were introduced earlier were continued as well as with

introduction of some new features.

Some of the salient features of the department are:

X3

S

X3

8

X3

8

X3

%

X3

%

Provision for restoration of Certificate of Practice.

Waiver of convenience charges / bank charges in making online payments by
Members.

Provision for incorporation of GST number against membership number along
with the reflection of the same in their corresponding membership fees receipts.
Facility of payment of membership fee online without login.

Faster grant of Certificate of Practice in a regular manner.

Publication of List of Members as well as List of Members holding Certificate of
Practice.

Introduction of facility of Mobile OTP based login system.

OTP based verification of mobile no. and email id of the new applicant for
membership.

Introduction of photo and signature of the member at Associate and Fellow
membership certificates.

Introduction of one-time Remission/Amnesty Scheme for the members whose
names were removed earlier due to non-payment of membership fees.

Continuous improvement for a seamless digital experience covering all activities of
membership through online facility.

v' Directorate of Journal & Publications

The Directorate publishes monthly journal “The Management Accountant” and

0
0‘0

quarterly journal “Research Bulletin” on regular basis.

The Management Accountant journal is now available in 94 countries across the world

and continuously trying to increase the same to other parts of the world.
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Y/
0'0
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S

X3

S

The Management Accountant journal is available on apps for reading through third
parties viz. Magzter and Readwhere and the Directorate is also trying to enlist the
same to other platforms mainly at the International Level.

The highly appraised Column “Digital Transformation” presented a wide array of
topics on digital transformation like, Digital Leader and Digital Leadership; Challenges
from 8Vs of Big Data Analytics; Web3 and Tokenisation for Asset Creation etc.

Column for Sustainability Leaf

Interview of Renowned Personalities

v Information Technology Department
With the efficient use of Information Technology, the services to Institute’s stakeholders is

getting better exponentially as Information Technology is contributing to overall growth of
the Institute.

@,
0’0

R/
0'0

R/
0'0

Elections to the Council and Regional Councils, 2023

ICMAI Channel has been made live on JIO TV

Development of Fixed Asset Management System

Global Summit 2023

Migration of Application & Database Server on Microsoft Azure
Creation of Email IDs

Members Online System

Students Online System

Helpdesk Portal

Edu Connect Portal

Introduction of Chat Bot on ICMAI Website

TRD & BFSI

Development of New Sections for various courses conducted by various departments
IT Support during CMA Awards 2022

Online Events

IT Policy Review

v Professional Development & CPD Directorate

+» PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES
= Recognition of CMAs on the Institute’s representation
= Representations to Government, PSUs, Banks and Other Organizations
»  Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) Portal
=  MoU of the Institute

=  Guidance Note

=  Awards of the Institute

+ CONTINUING EDUCATION PROGRAMME (CEP) ACTIVITIES
» Mandatory Capacity Building Training (MCBT) for COP holders
»  Continuing Education Programme

*  Programmes and Webinars
= Joint Programmes
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International Affairs Department

= Associate Membership of ASEAN Federation of Accountants (AFA)
= International Meetings & Events

e South Asian Federation of Accountants (SAFA)

e Confederation of Asian and Pacific Accountants (CAPA)
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
Other International Events

Board of Advanced Studies & Research

e Advanced Studies Courses
e Online Examinations

Technical Department

* Cost Accounting Standards Board (CASB)

* Cost Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (CAASB)
= Technical Cell (Cost Audit & Statutory Compliances)

= Peer Review Board (PRB)

Banking Financial Services & Insurance Board

A)
B)
C)
D)
E)
F)
G)
H)
)

)

K)

Representation letters for inclusion of CMAs

Inclusion of CMAs in various opportunities
Representations towards various authorities
Representation to IRDAI

Meetings with Dignitaries for enhancing the scope of CMAs
Conducting various Events and Webinars

Various Months dedicated by the BFSIB by conducting various programmes
BFSI Insight Summit organized by the Business Standard
Publication of the BFSI Board

Online Certificate Courses

Daily Updates

v’ Sustainability Standards Board

The Council of the Institute of Cost Accountants of India has constituted the Sustainability
Standards Board (SSB) in the year 2022 with the objective to enable the members of the
Institute play an active role in the Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BRSR) &
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) compliance and disclosures.

The SSB has done the following activities for the year 2023-24.

=W

5.

Webinars

Monthly Newsletter titled Sukhinobhavantu

Course on ESG

Guidelines for implementing BRSR Core for Value Chain Partners and assurance
standards for BRSR Core

Finalization of Sustainability Standards and many more

v' Management Accounting Committee

The Management Accounting Committee of the Institute, is continuously making the

en

deavour to develop best practices and guidance on the relevant topics of Management

Accounting that is of high importance to the members in practice, business and industry.
The Committee proposes to facilitate communication and sharing of knowledge between
the Institute and its members as well as other organizations dealing with Management
Accountancy and to take up the task of issuing Management Accounting Guidelines and /
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or Good Management Accounting Practices on the significant areas of Management
Accounting worldwide.

Public Sector Undertakings Co-ordination Board
The Board having 15 members which is headed by CMA Avijit Goswami as Chairman. This

consists of members from the Council and also senior persons having rich PSU and
industrial experience.

Members in Industry Committee
Publication of ‘Industry Insights’ Bulletin

MII Portal - Industry Connect - https://icmai.in/icmai/MI Industry Insights.ph
MII LinkedIn Profile - https://www.linkedin.com/in/members-in-industry-committee-

4482052a9/

Five-day Online Industry Connect and Knowledge Enrichment Program:

CFO Leadership Summits

Cooperative Development Board

The Cooperative Development Board of the Institute of Cost Accountants of India for the year
2023-24 have functioned under the chairmanship of CMA Navneet Kumar Jain. Cooperatives
are organizations formed at the grassroots level by people to harness the power of collective
bargaining in the marketplace. Cooperatives are a state subject under the Constitution,
meaning they come under the State Governments’ jurisdiction, but there are many societies
whose members and areas of operation are spread across more than one state.

v

v

Internal Control Committee

Internal Audit

The Department had coordinated for the appointment of Internal Auditors for the year
2023-2024 for the Headquarters including Delhi Office, four Regional Councils (WIRC,
SIRC, EIRC and NIRC) and nine Chapters (Bangalore, Hyderabad, Bhubaneswar, Jaipur,
Vijayawada, Coimbatore, Thrissur Nellore and Cochin) with Turnover exceeding Rs. 1
crore and above through an Expression of Interest and also providing the scope of work
and necessary coordination for such audit.

Purchase Proposals

The department has been vetting various purchase proposals originating from different
departments at HQ, Delhi Office along with procurement proposals of Regional
Councils and Chapters.

Implementation of Uniform Purchase Procedure

Regional Council & Chapters Coordination Committee

The Committee is tasked with:

e Bridging the gap among Headquarters, Regional Councils & Chapters

e Improving operational efficiencies

e Encouraging Regional Council & Chapters to cooperate with compliance, rules &
regulations of the Institute

e Proactively identifying issues and facilitating joint action on cross-cutting issues or
issues of shared Concern.

Activities of the Committee:
+ Region wise Chapters Meets in 2023
++ National Chapters Meet in 2024

+« Initiatives to revise the Chapter Bye Laws


https://icmai.in/icmai/MI_Industry_Insights.php
https://www.linkedin.com/in/members-in-industry-committee-4482052a9/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/members-in-industry-committee-4482052a9/
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v Career Counselling & Placement Committee

« To initiate, create and develop promotional, creative and meaningful content for
disseminating knowledge, focusing on CMA Education and Career opportunities;

o

*» To organize awareness programmes, deliberations, discussions, workshops and other
similar types of activities for drawing the student’s attention and awareness;

» To interact and collaborate with Schools, Colleges, Institutes, Universities, Higher
professional Accounting bodies and other entities in India and exchange information
aligning with the aims and objectives of the Committee;

» To organize and participate in various education, career counselling and job fairs;

D3

D3

D3

» Conducting workshops in schools, colleges, Institutes and Universities on the topics
of interest;

B3

» To take up any other activities aligning with the aims and objectives of the Committee
and
Council.

v' Quality Review Board (QRB)

The had 4 meetings during the Financial Year 2023-24.

v"  Tax Research Department
e Budget Seminar, 2024

e C(Celebrating the 7th Anniversary of GST Day
Quiz

Tax Bulletins

Workshops

Webinars

Representation to the Government
Taxation Help Desk

Taxation Courses

Indirect Taxation

e C(ertificate Course on GST
Advanced Certificate Course on GST
GST Course for College and Universities
Advance Course on GST Audit and Assessment
Certificate Course on International Trade

Direct Taxation
e Certificate Course on TDS
e  C(ertificate Course on Income Tax Return Filling
e Advance Course on Income Tax Appeals and Assessment
e Income Tax Course for College and Universities

v'  CAT Directorate

Activities:

CAT Course for retiring/retired Defence Personnel
NCVET Recognition

Career Counselling

New ROCC

Examination

Online Classes

KR )
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Institute’s request to Govt. Ministries and Departments and its follow up

Media Management

Inviting VVIP’s for Institute’s Programmes as Chief Guests and Guests of Honor on behalf of the
institute
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v'  MSME & Start-up Promotion Board

The following two publications of the MSME & Start up promotion board were released at 61st National Cost
Management Accountants’ Convention at Gujarat.

(a) Compendium on the MSME Schemes

(b) Enterprises Performance & Risk Management for MSMEs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Council of THE INSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of THE INSTITUTE OF COST
ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA (‘the Institute’) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31 March,

2024, the Statement of Income and Expenditure and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
accompanying financial statements prepared in all material respects in accordance with the Cost
Accountants Act, 1959, give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Institute as at 31%
March, 2024, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
the applicable Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. The consolidated financial statements of the Institute are prepared considering Head Quarter
Kolkata, New Delhi Office, four Regional Councils and one hundred seven Chapters. Out of which
the financial statement of one Chapter namely Jabalpur is unaudited.

Financial statements of nine Chapters are not available for consolidation in the consolidated
financial statements of the Institute.

2. There is an un-reconciled net credit balance of Rs. 2,29,43,332 /- Cr (P.Y — Rs. 32,18,52,550/-Cr)
classified under ‘Current Accounts with Regional Councils and Chapters’. Refer Note No. 5 of
Notes to Financial Statements.

3. Inrespect of Eastern India Regional Council (EIRC):

There has been an understatement of income in the books of EIRC Regional Council to the extent
of Rs. 19,20,000/- for the FY 2023-24 (Total Rs. 49,60,000/- from September, 2021 to March,

2024) with respect to the part of the premises rented out to State Bank of India.
4. In respect of Northern India Regional Council (NIRC):

i)  The Council has not provided for the liability of gratuity in the books of accounts to the extent
of Rs. 56,84,605/- as per valuation report received from LIC of India, Pension and Group
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Schemes Department. Moreover, valuation has been done for 6 employees whereas there are 7

employees in the organization.

ii)  The Council has not maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets. No physical verification of fixed assets has been conducted
during the year. However, the Management is in the process of preparation of fixed assets

register and physical verification of fixed assets.

Financial impact of the above qualifications cannot be ascertained.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Institute in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements and we have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with these

requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following notes:

a) In respect to Head Quarter:

1. Note No. 2(j) of Notes to Accounts which describes that, an amount of Rs. 4,99,78,350/- is
lying in the books of Head Quarter representing CWIP in respect of which no further work has
been carried out/undertaken during the last 6 years. Details as below:

Particulars Amount (Rs.) Remarks
Navi Mumbai 4,99,78,350/- | Last amount paid Rs.5,66,334/- on 13.07.2016
Centre of & Rs. 22,400/- on 17.08.2016 to the Contractor.
Excellence However, litigation is pending before Bombay
High Court vide Commercial Arbitration
Petition No 613 of 2021.
TOTAL 4,99,78,350/-

b) In respect to EIRC:

i)  Note 3(c) of Notes to Accounts regarding TDS receivable balance of Rs. 4,14,918/-
appearing as on 31.03.2024 which needs to reconciled with reference to physical TDS
certificates as well as actual deposits to the Department in the name of Institute from
Income Tax Portal.

i) Note 3(d) of Notes to Accounts regarding an amount of Rs. 10,00,000/- paid as advance to
Bhubaneswar Chapter on 22.11.2023 for 43 RCC preliminary expenditure which is lying
unadjusted as on 31.03.2024.
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¢) Inrespectto WIRC:

Note No. 4(a) of Notes to Accounts, which describes that, Claims receivable of Rs. 67,30,000/-
appearing in the books of WIRC.

d) Inrespectto NIRC:

i)  Note No. 5(a)(iii) of Notes to Accounts regarding pending demands
of TDS at Traces for Rs. 1,45,710/- are pending for a long time but no provision has
been made in the books as the Council is of view that demand will be quashed after
rectification.

ii) Note No. 5()(iv) of Notes to Accounts regarding Security Deposits
given amounting to Rs. 1,67,690/- and advance to employees amounting to Rs. 15,488/-
which is considered to be doubtful, but no provision has been made against the same as
the Council is of the view that they will recover the same.

e) The year-end balance confirmation of trade receivables, trade payables, loans and advances etc.
have not been received from the parties.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Institute’s Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the Cost Accountants Act, 1959 and for such internal control as
Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Institute’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Institute or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management is responsible for overseeing the Institute’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Institute’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Institute’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Institute to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in:

i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
i)  to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matters

1.

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of four Regional Councils and one hundred and six
Chapters whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 2,43,67,04,251/- and total revenue
of Rs. 50,52,08,961/- as considered in the financial statements. The financial statements of these
Regional Councils have been audited by Other Auditors, appointed by the respective Regional
Councils and the financial statements of majority of these Chapters have been audited by Cost
Accountants appointed by Governing Bodies of the Chapter in terms of Regulation 133 of the Cost
Accountants Act, 1959, and Clause 26 of the Chapter Bye-laws of the Institute, whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the financial statements, in so far as
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it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these aforesaid Councils and
Chapters is based solely on the reports of the Other Auditors and Cost Accountants respectively.

(b) The financial statements of one Chapter namely Jabalpur is unaudited and have been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the financial statements, in so far
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this aforesaid Regional
Council and Chapter based solely on such unaudited financial statements certified by the
Management. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us by the Management, the financial statements as certified by the Management is not
material in the context of overall financial statements of the Institute.

(c) The financial statements for the year of the Institute do not include the financial
statements of nine Chapters, as no financial statements have been received from their end.

(d) The financial statements of the Institute for FY 2023-24 include ninety-seven Chapters
audited by Cost Accountants and nine Chapters audited by Chartered Accountants.

Our opinion on the financial statements and our report on Other Regulatory Requirements below, is not
modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports
of the Other Auditors and Cost Accountants, as the case may be and the financial statements certified
by the Management.

2.

The Fixed Asset Register for the Immovable Asset of the Institute is being updated.

The amount of Rs. 36,35,000/- released during FY 2020-21 is still lying as “Advance for Pune
Building” under the head “Loans & Advances” and not being treated as “Capital Grant”

Labour Cess payable amounting to Rs. 1,41,157/- is lying in the books of accounts. As informed
by the Management the same has not been paid due to delay on part of Government procedures.

An amount of Rs. 15,56,53,261/- has been reversed for excess provision made on account of
current liabilities towards Regional Councils and Chapters which is included in prior period

adjustment (net) as reported in Income & Expenditure Account.

During the FY 2023-24 an amount of Rs. 1,68,45,233/- GST input lying unutilized have been
charged to Income & Expenditure Account.

With respect to Bangalore chapter

i) On review of Internal Audit Report (First Half 2023-24) para 3 & 4, and based on e-mail received

form the Head Quarters on 6 April, 2023 stating that “the recruitment/engagement of personnel
at Bangalore Chapter of the Institute which took place without the consent or approval of the
concerned authority(s) of the Head Quarters of the Institute stands cancelled with immediate
effect. The salaries and other benefits drawn by them during their service tenure shall be
recovered from the paying authority(s).” In this connection, the Chapter’s Management has taken
action to terminate the concerned contractual employees. Further, the Chapter’s Management
had written letter to the Head Quarters seeking clarification about ‘paying authority(s)’ in order
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to recover the amount from them and also requested the Head Quarters to clarify the accounting

treatment of the above receivables in the books of Bangalore Chapter, for which the reply is
awaited. The salaries and other benefits paid to those contractual employees during their service
tenure from FY 2017-18 to 2023-24 need to be quantified by the Internal
Auditors.

Report on Other Regulatory Requirements

We further report that:

a)

b)

d)

Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion paragraph above,
we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion paragraph above,
in our opinion proper books of account as required by the Cost Accountants Act, 1959, have been
kept by the Institute so far as appears from our examination of those books and proper returns
adequate for the purpose of our audit have been received from the Regions and Chapters read with
paragraph 1 of ‘Other Matters’;

The reports on the financial statements of the Regional Councils and Chapters of the Institute
audited by the Other Auditors and Cost Accountants of the respective Regions and Chapters as
have been received by us, were properly dealt with in preparing this report.

The Institute’s Balance Sheet, Statement of Income and Expenditure and Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

For KGRS & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 310014 E

Anshu Agarwal
Partner
Membership No. 308581

UDIN: 24308581BKFOFP3756

Place: Kolkata
Date: 21% July, 2024
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IHE INSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST

MARCH, 2024
As At As At
31st March 2023 |[PARTICULARS Note 31st
g g
SOURCES OF FUNDS
INSTITUTE FUND
4,233,909,019 |General Fund 1) 4,900,8
2,239,482 |Employees' Gratuity Fund 2) 2,2
12,880,698 |Miscellaneous Prize Fund (3) 13,3
50,541,678 |Other Funds 4) 19,3
778,431,364 |Current Liabilities (5) 444.9
17,256,939 | Provisions (6) 15,5
5,095,259,180 TOTAL 5,396,2
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Non Current Assets
618,781,092 |a) Property, Plant and Equipment (7) 699,110,042 699,1
698,180 |b) Intangible Assets 7 446,370 4
151,849,719 |Capital Work In Progress 88,0
111,151,147 |Investments (8) 1111
Current Assets
7,568,481 | Inventories 9) 9,252,542
175,529,378 [Trade Receivables (10) 233,444,286
3,977,417,448 [Cash and Cash Equivalents (11) 4,189,698,434
52,263,735 |Loans and Advances (12) | ___65,105.481
4,497,5
4,212,779,042
5,095,259,180 TOTAL 5,396,2
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (20)

Accompanying Notes 1-20 form an integral part of the financial statements

Anshu Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. : 308581

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 21/07/2024

even date. For KGRS & CO

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 310014E

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of

CMA Soma Banerjee
Additional Director -Finance

CMA Bibhuti Bhusan Nayak

Vice President

CMA Dr. Kaushik Banerjee

Secretary

CMA Ashwin G. Dalwadi

President
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THE INSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2024

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March 2023 [PARTICULARS Note 31st March 2024
g
INCOME :
51,859,340 |Membership and Other Fees (13) 55,345,089
1,235,176,071 |Tuition and Other Fees (14) 1,304,622,758
308,685,692 [Examination and Other Fees (15) 341,082,187
25,774,494 |C. P.D and Other Programme Fees 25,652,453
481,948 |Journal Subscription incl. Advertisement 467,702
220,908 |Sale of Publication 820,546
184,136,391 [Interest 259,317,463
13,984,942 |Other Income 10,315,948
1,820,319,785 TOTAL 1,997,624,146
EXPENDITURE :
369,515,306 |Establishment Expenses (16) 383,233,281
158,141,238 |Office Expenses 7) 198,581,521
2,135,149 |Statutory Audit Fees 2,391,310
16,838,417 |Travelling & Conveyance 14,419,768
301,940,529 [Examination Expenses (18) 239,833,167
42,903,223 |Council and Committee Meeting Expenses 36,960,095
21,646 |Election Expenses incl. Tribunal 20,192,488
11,361,041 |Journal Expenses 19,992,191
11,796,583 |Membership Subscription to Foreign Bodies 11,874,750
6,833,009 |Conference & Meeting International 4,212,601
40,857,065 |C. P.D, Technical Skill Developmentand Other Programme Expenses | (19) 44,254,997
14,967,624 |Professional Development Expenses 12,040,446
390,935,780 |Coaching Expenses 340,995,397
47,221,667 |Study Materials and Prospectus Consumed 73,218,780
557,579 |Publication Stock Consumed 2,907,718
855,855 |Inventories and bad debts written off 4,474,977
16,636,602 |Contribution to MBF & Critical iliness 13,327,552
47,742,768 |Depreciation and amortisation (7) 50,341,405
1,481,261,080 TOTAL 1,473,252,444
339,058,704 [Balance being excess of Income over Expenditure 524,371,702
5,869,896 |Prior Period Adjustments (Net) (135,754,171)
333,188,808 |Balance being Surplus transferred to General Fund 660,125,873
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (20)

Accompanying Notes 1-20 form an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Statement of Income and Expenditure referred to in our report of even date. For

KGRS & CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. : 310014E

Anshu Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. : 308581

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 21/07/2024

CMA Soma Banerjee
Additional Director -Finance

CMA Bibhuti Bhusan Nayak
Vice President

CMA Dr. Kaushik Banerjee
Secretary

CMA Ashwin G. Dalwadi
President
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THE INSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

PARTICULARS

For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2024

g

3]

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

333,188,808 [SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEM 660,125,873
ADJUSTMENTS FOR:-
47,742,768 |DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 50,341,405
380,931,576 |OPERATING SURPLUS BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 710,467,278
ADJUSTMENTS FOR WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
117,096,755 |INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CURRENT LIABILITIES (335,168,869)
(30,422,714) |(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN CURRENT ASSETS (72,440,716)
86,674,041 (407,609,585)
467,605,617 [NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 302,857,693

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

(70,201,433)

MOVEMENTS IN PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS INCLUDING CWIP

(16,316,620)

DECREASE IN INVESTMENT

(70,201,433)

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

(16,316,620)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(43,483,451)

MOVEMENT IN FUND BALANCE

(74,260,088)

(43,483,451)

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)

(74,260,088)

353,920,733

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)

212,280,985

3,623,496,715

ADD- CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD

3,977,417,448

3,977,417,448 ICASH & CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE END OF THE PERIOD |

4,189,698,434

NOTES:-

i. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under ‘Indirect Method' as set out in Accounting

standard, AS - 3 on " Cash Flow Statement".

ii. Cash and Cash Equivalents represent :

1,204,785 [Cash in hand 941,070
200,681,972 [Bank Balance - Current Account 245,795,614
92,197,894 |Bank Balance - Savings Account 88,808,664

3,683,332,798

Fixed Deposits

3,854,153,087

3,977,417,448

4,189,698,434

For KGRS & CO
Chartered Accountants

Anshu Agarwal
Partner

Place : Kolkata
Dated :21/07/2024

Firm Regn. No. : 310014E

Membership No. : 308581

This is the Cash Flow Statement refered to in our report of even date.

CMA Soma Banerjee

Additional Director -Finance Secretary

CMA Bibhuti Bhusan Nayak

Vice President President

CMA Dr. Kaushik Banerjee

CMA Ashwin G. Dalwadi
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THE INSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTD.)

NOTE NO.1 :

GENERAL FUND

As At As At
31st March 2023 PARTICULARS 31st March 2024
T T
3,898,048,503 |Balance as per last Accounts 4,233,909,019
Add :
- | i) Capitalization of Chapter's Building 73,320,604
i) Transfer of Capital- Vindhyanagar Chapter 4,243,819

3,898,048,503

4,311,473,442

3,898,048,503

4,311,473,442

Less- Adjustment for Chapters Building building

73,320,604

2,671,708 |Add : Entrance Fees (Member)

2,589,840

3,900,720,211

4,240,742,678

Add : Surplus for the year as per annexed Statement of

333,188,808

Income and Expenditure

660,125,873

4,233,909,019

4,900,868,551

NOTE NO. 2 :

EMPLOYEES' GRATUITY FUND

As Af] As Af]
31st March 2023 PARTICULARS 31st March 2024
g z
1,296,391 |Balance as per last Account 2,239,482
129,573 |Add : Contribution for the year (38,942)
1,425,964 2,200,540
622,391 |Add : Interest earned on Fixed Deposit during the year 41,488
(191,127) Less : Tran;ferred to gratuity fund )
during the year
2,239,482 2,242,028
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THE INSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTD.)

NOTE NO. 3 :

MISCELLANEOUS PRIZE FUND

As At
31st March 2023 |PARTICULARS

g

As At
31st March 2024

g

12,419,397 |Balance as per Previous Balance Sheet 12,880,698
43,833 |Add : Addition during the year 228,121
568,023 |Add : Income credited during the year 405,438
(150,555 |Less : Cost of the prize (189,031)
12,880,698 13,325,226
NOTE NO. 4 :
OTHER FUND
As At As At

31st March 2021 |JPARTICULARS

g

31st March 2022

z

4,198,087 |Building Fund 2,213,979
4,497,251 |Library Fund 4,577,251
41,846,340 |Miscellaneous Fund 12,551,032

19,342,262

50,541,678
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IHEINSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

NOTE NO.5 :

CURRENT LIABILITIES

As At As Af]
31st March 2023|PARTICULARS 31st March 2024
g 3
1,151,900 |Library Deposit 1,172,900
278,321,933 |Trade Payables 173,194,354
321,852,550 |Current Account with Regional Councils and Chapters 22,943,332
155,588,257 |Other Liabilities 221,457,656
12,564,269 |Payable to Members Benevolent Fund 12,720,169
8,952,455 |TDS Payable 13,440,177
778,431,364 444,928,588
NOTE NO.6 :
PROVISIONS
As At As Af
31st March 2023 [PARTICULARS 31st March 2024
g 3
17,256,939 |Provisions 15,590,847
17,256,939 15,590,847
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THE INSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE NO. 7:

Gross Block Depreciation/Amortisation Net Block
Opening Addition Less : Sale/ Total Upto For the Add/(Less) : Upto As at As at
Descrintion of Assets Cost during the Adjustment as on 01.04.2023 year Depreciation 31.03.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
P 01.04.2023 period during the period 31.03.2024 Adjustment
during the year
g g g g g g g g g g
A. Property, Plant and Egipment :
FREEHOLD LAND 198,565,488 10,889,941 209,455,429 - - - 209,455,429 198,565,488
LEASEHOLD LAND 64,431,251 64,431,251 11,350,070 832,057 12,182,127 52,249,124 53,081,181
FREEHOLD BUILDING 729,382,767 81,799,771 (393,174) 810,789,364 450,289,342 31,900,594 474,793 482,664,729 328,124,635 279,093,425
FURNITURE & FITTINGS 93,819,634 11,179,880 (124,441) 104,875,073 55,208,810 4,624,038 (3,384,977) 56,447,871 48,427,202 38,610,824
LIBRARY BOOKS 12,783,236 282,113 13,065,349 12,263,052 380,199 (229,808) 12,413,443 651,906 520,184
OFFICE EQUIPMENTS 106,774,089 7,818,149 (97,674) 114,494,564 74,268,529 5,747,558 (2,670,944) 77,345,143 37,149,421 32,505,560
GENERATORS 16,148,773 684,311 16,833,084 12,105,524 684,016 (26,751) 12,762,789 4,070,295 4,043,249
LIFT 14,168,449 3,082,882 17,251,331 10,639,546 884,517 11,524,063 5,727,268 3,528,903
MOTOR CAR 2,934,582 1,202,510 4,137,092 645,631 583,845 1,229,476 2,907,616 2,288,951
COMPUTER 70,472,144 4,646,787 (1,049) 75,117,882 63,928,816 4,424,183 (3,582,264) 64,770,736 10,347,146 6,543,328
CYCLE 8,368 8,368 8,368 - 8,368 - -
TOTAL A 1,309,488,781 121,586,344 (616,338) 1,430,458,787 690,707,689 50,061,007 (9,419,951) 731,348,745 699,110,042 618,781,092
B. Intangible Assets :
SOFTWARE 42,425,760 14,514 (33,198) 42,407,076 41,727,580 280,398 (47,272) 41,960,706 446,370 698,180
TOTAL B 42,425,760 14,514 (33,198) 42,407,076 41,727,580 280,398 (47,272) 41,960,706 446,370 698,180
Grand Total 1,351,914,541 121,600,858 (649,536) 1,472,865,863 732,435,269 50,341,405 (9,467,223) 773,309,451 699,556,412 619,479,272
Previous Year 1,325,515,909 26,573,207 (174,575) 1,351,914,541 686,036,348 47,742,768 (1,343,847) 732,435,269 639,479,561
Capital-Work in Progress 151,849,719 (63,760,520) 88,089,199 88,089,199 151,849,719
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

JHE INSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA

NOTE NO. 8:

INVESTMENTS (AT COST)

UNQUOTED
As At As At
31st March 2023 PARTICULARS 31st March 2024
g 4
SHARES OF CO-OPERATIVE TRUST :
50 (Previous year 50) Shares of Rs.10/- each in
500 [Rohit Chambers Premises Co-operative Society Limited,Mumbai 500
( earlier described as Jai Brindaban Premises Trust Fund, Bombay)
110,000,000 [Investment in Insolvancy Professional Agency of ICAI 110,000,000
1,10,00,000 (Previous year 1,10,00,000 Nos.) of paid up shares of Rs.10 each )
1,100,000 1,1Q,000 ( Previous year l.,lO,.OOO) Investment in ICMA- 1,100,000
Registered Valuers Organisation
50,647 |- Others 50,647
111,151,147 111,151,147
NOTE NO. 9:
INVENTORIES
As At As At
31st March 2023 PARTICULARS 31st March 2024
g g
2,657,387 |- Publication Stock 2,443,686
3,056,760 |- Study Material incl.Prospectus Stock 5,150,411
1,854,334 |- Stock of Other Material 1,658,445
7,568,481 9,252,542
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JHE INSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

NOTE NO. 10 :

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GOOD)

As At As At
31st March 2023|PARTICULARS 31st March 2024
B4 3
26,049,317 |Trade Receivable 30,447,801
149,480,061 |Other Receivables 202,996,485
175,529,378 233,444,286
NOTE NO. 11 :
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As At As At
31st March PARTICULARS 31st March 2024,
£ 3
Cash and Cash Equivalents :
1,204,785 |Cash in hand 941,070
Balances with Scheduled Banks |
200,681,972 |On Current Account 245,795,614
92,197,894 |On Savings Account 88,808,664

3,683,332,798

Fixed Deposits with Banks

3,854,153,087

3,977,417,448

4,189,698,434
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THEINSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTD.)

NOTE NO.12 :

LOANS AND ADVANCES
(UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GOOD)

As At

31st March 2023

¥

PARTICULARS

As At

31st March 2024

g

18,242,591 |Other Advances 25,209,147

629,225 |Festival Advance to Employees 560,261
21,364,841 |TDS Receivable 22,824,667
1,424,264 |Prepaid Expenses 11,272,900
10,602,814 |Deposit 5,238,506
52,263,735 65,105,481
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THE INSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

NOTE NO.13 :

MEMBERSHIP AND OTHER FEES :

For the year ended

31st March 2023

PARTICULARS

For the year ended

31st March 2024

z z
40,944,868 | Annual Membership Fees 39,849,596
9,046,075 | Members Certificate of Practice Fees 9,053,240
- Certified Facilitation Centre Fees 4,212,400
672,934 | Members Complaint / Restoration Fees/Nomination Fees 917,130

- Nomination Fee 519,050
1,159,150 | Membership & Certification Fees - IMA(USA) 635,273
36,313 | Certificate of Good Standing 158,400
51,859,340 55,345,089

NOTE NO.14 :

TUITION AND OTHER FEES :

For the year ended

31st March 2023

PARTICULARS

For the year ended

31st March 2024

z g

36,324,900 | Student Registration Fees 23,330,224
5,605,500 | Practical Training Registration Fees 12,660,000
7,253,300 | Practical Training/Subject Exemption Fees 9,015,500
1,119,336,310 | Tuition Fees 1,172,483,882
52,595,256 | CAT Course Income 63,638,312
4,892,200 | Revalidation of Coaching Completion Certificates Fees 3,403,149
5,440,671 | Sale of Prospectus 2,384,043
3,727,934 | Sale of Study Notes 17,707,648

1,235,176,071

1,304,622,758

NOTE NO.15 :

EXAMINATION AND OTHER FEES :

For the year ended

31st March 2023

PARTICULARS

For the year ended

31st March 2024

z g
302,528,692 | Examination Fees 333,644,279
6,157,000 | Verification of Answers Paper Fees 7,437,908
308,685,692 341,082,187
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THE INSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANT E INDIA

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTD.)

NOTE NO.16 :

ESTABLISHMENT EXPENSES

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2023 PARTICULARS 31st March 2024
g g
300,503,987 | Salaries and Allowances 317,093,684
13,437,010 | Employer's Cont. to Employees' Gratuity Fund 9,861,775
26,286,122 | Employer's Cont. to Employees' Provident Fund 28,156,708
46,075 | Employer's Cont. to Employees' Benevolent Fund 11,674
15,043,620 | Employer's Cont. to Employees' Leave Encashment 11,138,425
898,378 | Employees' Leave Encashment - Existing 2,615,582
8,432,367 | Medical Expenses 8,907,614
2,863,485 | Leave Travel Allowance to Employees 3,021,144
1,437,228 | RPFC Administration and E.D.L.I. Inspection Charges 1,579,879
567,034 | Training and Development (H.R.D.) 846,796
369,515,306 383,233,281
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THE INSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTD.)

NOTE NO.17 :

OFFICE EXPENSES

For the year ended

For the year ended

31st March 2023 PARTICULARS 31st March 2024
Z g
8,203,332 |Printing & Stationery 7,317,924
7,967,164 |Postage,Telegrams,Telephones and Fax 9,837,384
1,880,720 [Internal Audit Fees 1,895,300
10,523,080 |Electricity Charges 13,201,224
280,487 |Generator Expenses 307,518
10,323,935 |Rates and Taxes 3,260,076
451,108 |Insurance 352,016
11,311,762 |Repair and Maintenance 10,747,121
1,357,064 |Car Expenses 1,454,718
7,820 |Interest on Caution Money Deposit 7,820
8,780,220 |Legal Charges 5,864,645
735,187 |Bank Charges 861,575
6,669,924 |Computer Maintenance Expenses 6,868,394
2,512,558 |Public Relation Expenses 4,477,108
3,644,220 |Watch and Ward Expenses 3,994,408
566,718 |Books and Periodicals 520,003
234,069 |Delegate Fee 236,550
234,000 |Gazette Notification 289,630
1,999,517 |Staff Welfare 3,602,231
7,383,947 |Rent 9,168,657
65,683,430 |Administrative Charges 104,452,397
7,390,977 |Sundry Expenses 9,864,821
158,141,238 198,581,521




[T 11| —Tve 4]

HTLT hT TSI AETTL

THEINSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

NOTE NO.18:

EXAMINATION EXPENSES

For the year ended

For the year ended

31st March 2023 PARTICULARS 31st March 2024

Z g

192,392,183 |Examination Expenses 91,892,216
78,244,190 |Examiners' Remunaration 85,899,927
29,944,026 |Examination Center Expenses 60,537,005
126,887 |Examination Expenses for oral coaching Students 14,250
1,233,243 |Prize & Prize Distribution Expenses 1,489,769
301,940,529 239,833,167

NOTE NO.19:

CPD PROGRAMME EXPENSES AND TECHNICAL SKILL

For the year ended

31st March 2023

PARTICULARS

For the year ended

31st March 2024

E§ g
10,294,371 |CPD Expenses 10,861,046
56,827 |National Award including Best Chapter Award 99,308
9,080,516 |Regional Cost / National Convention Expenses 5,790,327
17,651,068 |CPD Expenses - RC's/Chapters 24,184,386
3,774,283 JTechnical Skill Development 3,319,930
40,857,065 44,254,997
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THE INSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTATS OF INDIA
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
Note-20

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis for preparation of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements are prepared as going concern under the historical cost
convention, in accordance with the applicable Accounting Standards, the relevant
provisions of the Cost Accountants Act, 1959, as amended and on accrual basis unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of Consolidation

The financial statements of Headquarter (Kolkata), New Delhi Office, its Regional Councils
and Chapters are consolidated line by line by adding together the like items of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating all material intra group balances, intra
group transactions and resultant unrealized surplus/(deficit). Necessary adjustments are
made wherever required.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the reported
income and expenses of the year. The Management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could
differ from the estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are
recognized in the periods in which the results are known/ materialized.

Revenue Recognition

(a) Entrance Fees from Members
Entrance Fees received from members is credited to General Fund.
(b) Student Registration Fees

Registration Fees received from students is recognized as revenue income as and when
the student is enrolled and payment is received.

(c) Annual Members Fees

Annual Members Fees is recognized in the year to which it pertains and when the
payment is received except advance
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(d) Tuition Fees

Revenue in respect of Postal and Oral Tuition Fees are recognized as and when the
student is enrolled and payment is received.

(e) Sale of Publications

Revenue in respect of sale of publications is recognized when such publications are
transferred to a user for a price.

(f) Examination Fees
Examination Fees is recognized for the concerned term (s) to which it pertains.
(g) Programme Fees
Revenue from Programme Fees is recognized as and when such activity is undertaken.

(h) Interest

Interest income in respect of fixed deposits with Banks is recognized on accrual basis
taking into account the amount accrued and at applicable rate.

(i) Investment Income

Income from Investments is recognized as and when the right to receive the same is
established.

Expenditure

The expenditure is recognized on accrual basis including expenses related to postal and
oral coaching except in the following cases:

(i) The Annual Grants to Chapters are recognized on accrual basis based on claims.

(ii) Election expenses are recognized in the financial year in which it is incurred.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and net of
impairment, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any other cost, attributable to
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets being computer software are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and net of impairment, if any.
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Capital Work in Progress

Expenditure incurred on construction of assets which is not ready for their intended use is
carried at cost less impairment, if any, under Capital Work in Progress.

Depreciation/Amortization

(a) Depreciation/amortization on Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets is
provided on written down value method as per Income Tax Act, 1961.

(b) Leasehold land is amortized over the Lease period. The premium paid for acquisition of
Lease Hold Land is amortized over the period of lease. The ground rent, if any, are
recognized as expense in the year for which such charges are due or payable.

(c) Library books are depreciated at 40% in the year of purchase.

Investments

Long term investments are stated at cost. However, when there is a permanent decline in
the value of long term investments, carrying amount is reduced to recognize the decline.

Inventories

Publication stock, Study Materials and Paper Stock including Prospectus stock etc. are
valued at lower of Cost or Net Realizable Value. Cost of Publications and that of Study
Materials is determined on Weighted Average basis and cost of paper is determined on First-
In-First-Out (FIFO) basis.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

(i) A provision is recognized:

(a) when there is present obligation as a result of past event;

(b) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be
required to settle the obligation; and

(c) areliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

(if) No provision is recognized for:

(a) any possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Institute;

(b) any present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it
is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation
cannot be made.
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Such obligations are disclosed as Contingent Liabilities. These are assessed at regular
intervals and only that part of the obligation for which an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is probable, is provided for except in extremely rare circumstances where
no reliable estimate can be made.

Contingent Assets are not recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are denominated at the exchange rate prevailing on the
transaction date. Monetary items are reported by using the closing rate, prevailing at the
Balance Sheet date. Differences in the exchange rate arising on the settlement of monetary
items initially recorded/reported are recognized as income /expense, as the case may be, in
the Statement of Income and Expenditure, in the period in which it arises.

Employee Benefits

i) Short term benefit

The short term employee benefit is recognized as expense when claimed during the
period. Unclaimed amount is provided for.

ii) Post employment benefit

Post-employment benefits such as Provident Fund, Gratuity, Leave Encashment etc.
have been provided for, as applicable to Headquarter and Delhi Office and COEs.

Impairment of Assets

The carrying value of assets at each Balance Sheet date is reviewed for impairment.
Impairment is recognized, if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable
amount.

Taxes on Income

The Institute has been granted exemption from Income Tax under section 12A read with
section 11 of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as such no provision for income tax is made and
no provision for deferred tax asset or liability is considered necessary.

Prior Period income/expenditure

Prior period items which arise in the current period as a result of errors or omissions in the
preparation of financial statements in one or more prior periods are separately disclosed in
the Statement of Income and Expenditure.

GST Unutilized Balance Written Off

Balance of GST Input Credit as on 31.03.2024 lying unutilized is charged to Income &
Expenditure Account.
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B. NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
1. Basis of Consolidation

2.

b)

d)

The consolidated financial statements of the Institute are prepared considering Headquarter
Kolkata, New Delhi Office, four Regional Councils and one hundred seven Chapters. Out of
which the financial statements of one Chapter namely Jabalpur is unaudited. Financial statements
of nine Chapters namely, Vindhyanagar, Singrauli, Bokaro Steel City, Jajpur-Keonjhar,
Jamshedpur, Naihati-Ichapur, Rajpur, Chandrapura and Muzaffarpur are not included in
consolidated financial statements during current year, having not been received. However, current
year’s figures of the consolidated financial statements include the previous year’s figures
wherever available of these chapters.

With respect to Head Quarter:

a) Contingent Liability (to the extent not provided for)

i)  The Service Tax demand of Rs. 5,01,68,756/- (Previous Year Rs.5,01,68,756/-)
along with applicable interest penalty of Rs. 5,01,68,756/- (Previous Year
Rs.5,01,68,756/-) as per Finance Act, 1994 RW CGST Act, 2017 against which
a sum of Rs.37,62,657/- (Previous Year Rs.37,62,657/-) being 7.5% of the
demand has been paid and shown under the head “Loans and Advances”. The
Institute has filed an appeal against the demand which is yet to be adjudicated.

i) As per policy, medical expenses are reimbursed to the employees on submission
of bills, subject to limits specified in the policy. As per the terms of the policy
the unutilized balance can be accumulated for a period of 4 years. As on 31st
March, 2024, the unutilized balance lying to the credit of the employees
amounting to Rs 28,61,868/- (Previous Year Rs. 23,30,216/-).

Exemption in respect of Income Tax has been granted under section 12A read with
Section 11 of the Income Tax Act, 1961, Accordingly, no provision for income tax has
been made. No provision for Deferred Tax Assets or Liability is considered necessary.

All Prize Funds maintained by the Institute have been sponsored by different donors and
are incorporated in the accounts with corresponding investment in Fixed Deposit with
Banks, in terms of the decision of the Council.

Fixed Deposits of Rs 190,48,46,113/- (Previous Year Rs. 189,81,79,094/-) (HQ Kolkata
and Delhi office)
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€)

9)

h)

)

Other Advances include Rs.1,36,097/- (Previous Year Rs.1,36,097/-) due from a former
Council Member owing to disallowance by the MCA, Govt. of India and presently the
matter is subjudice.

Statutory Audit Fees (inclusive of GST) Rs. 5,45,210/- (Previous year Rs. 5,86,869/) -
Excluding Statutory Audit Fees in respect of Regions and Chapters.

Provident Fund contributions are made to “The Institute of Cost Accountants of India
Employees Provident Fund Trust.”

The liability in respect of Gratuity, as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended)
is recognized on the basis of contribution made to the LICI against the Group Gratuity
Policy.

The liability in respect of leave encashment is recognized on the basis of contribution
made to an Approved Leave Encashment Fund maintained with the LICI.

Construction of Navi Mumbai Centre Excellence building at Belapur, Navi Mumbai on
the leasehold plot taken from CIDCO was started in the year 2012-13. The tender for
the said construction was given to Gulraj Construction Pvt Ltd in the year 2013.As per
the decision of the Council construction work of the building was stopped in the year
2015, the super structure of the building consisting of ground plus 3 above floors was
completed.

Due to this stoppage of the construction works Gulraj Construction, Civil Contractor of
the project filed a case before the Hon'ble Arbitrator, Bombay claiming an amount of
Rs. 4,70,40,917/- from the Institute for their loss of profit, overhead, escalation of cost
due to time overrun of the project in the year 2017-18.

Subsequently, an Award of Rs. 81,48,937/- + interest @ 18% per annum from
07.05.2021 was passed by the Arbitral Tribunal on 07.04.2021 payable to Gulraj
Construction. An appeal against the said Arbitral Award has been filed by the Institute
before the Bombay, High Court.

The Honorable High Court of Bombay vide its Order dated 13th March, 2024 stayed on
the operation, execution, and implementation of the Award dated 7th April 2021 subject
to the Institute (Applicant/Petitioner) depositing the awarded amount of Rs.32,28,257/-
and furnishing a bank guarantee of a Nationalized Bank with regard to the interest at the
rate of 12% on principal amount of Rs 32,28,257/-, which is as on the date of Award is
Rs 18,83,275/-.

The amount has been fully provided for in the books of accounts.

k) The Institute had availed the services of AON Consulting Pvt Ltd (AON) for

conducting online examination of June and December 2022 Term. The 338th
Examination Committee in its meeting held on 14" January 2023 noted material breach
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of the Contract in providing the satisfactory service by AON and has withheld payment
amounting to Rs. 13,99,40,122 (inl. GST).

During the FY 2023-24, invoice of Rs. 5,71,933/- (incl GST) was received from AON
pertaining to June 2022 Examination Term resulting in total amount payable to AON
is Rs 14,05,12,055/- (inl. GST).

After direction received from competent authority, during the F.Y 2023-24, the
payment was released to AON amounting to Rs.13,15,81,205/- (incl GST) after
deduction of Rs.41,67,730/- (3.5% of base value excluding 18% GST on
Rs.14,05,12,055/-i.e Rs.11,90,78,013) and deduction of applicable taxes.

TCS-ION had been engaged by the Institute to conduct online Intermediate and Final

Examination of Dec 2021 term. As noted by the 334th Council in its meeting held on

22nd January 2022 which was concluded on 7th March 2022 and the 335th
Examination Committee in its meeting held on 7th March 2022 the services of TCS-
ION were not satisfactory for which the final examination of the Institute for December
2021 was delayed and had to be rescheduled and conducted in a phased manner.

An invoice amounting to Rs.24,22,75,900/-(incl. GST) was received from TCS in the
FY 2022-23. As per the approval from the Examination Department, it was decided to
pay 50% of the billed amount and withheld the remaining 50% amount of
Rs. 10,26,59,280 (excl GST). TCS-ION has served a legal notice dated 15th March
2023 demanding a payment of Rs. 12,52,44,320.80/-.

After direction received from competent authority, during the F.Y 2023-24, the
payment was released to TCS-ION amounting to Rs.10,47,12,466/- (incl GST) after
deduction of Rs.1,23,19,114/- (6% of base value excluding 18% GST on
Rs.24,22,75,900/-i.e Rs.20,53,18,560/-) and deduction of applicable taxes.

Investments (Not held in the name of the Institute)

i)  Investments in Insolvency Professional Agency of ICAI include 6 shares of Rs.
10/- each not held in the name of the Institute but in the names of nominees of
the Institute of Cost Accountants of India.

i)  Investments in ICMAI Registered Valuers Organisation include 1 share of Rs.
10/- each not held in the name of the Institute but in the names of nominees of
The Institute of Cost Accountants of India.

Amount of Rs. 36,35,000 released during the FY 2020-21 is still lying as “Advance
for Pune Building” under the head “Loans & Advances” due to pending land transfer
in the name of Head Quarter
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0) An amount of Rs. 15,56,53,261/- has been reversed for excess provision made on

c)

account of current liabilities towards Regional Councils and Chapters which is
included in prior period adjustment (net) as reported in Income & Expenditure
Account.

Physical verification of movable fixed asset for the FY 2022-23 was conducted. As per
the said report damaged/obsolete movable fixed asset amounting to Rs 2,24,109/- have
been found and the same was been written off in the books of accounts.

b) Inventories consisting of old Syllabus books of the year 2016 amounting to Rs
35,45,363/- have been written off during the year.

Based on the available information with the Institute as at 31st March, 2024, there is
no amount including Interest thereon payable to Micro Enterprises and small
Enterprises as defined under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006, as amended.

3. In respect of EIRC

a)

b)

d)

In accordance with the letter issued by the Secretary of the Institute, EIRC neither raised
any invoice against the rent nor collected any amount from SBI from the period
beginning from September, 2021 to March 2024 amounting to Rs. 49,60,000/-.

Contingent Liability- A legal suit has been filed by some ex-contractual employees
against EIRC of the Institute of Cost Accountants of India sometime in the year 2014,
which is still pending. Status has not changed during the year. Necessary effect, if any,
will be provided in the accounts after the closure of the case and as per final verdict.

In TDS receivable account balance of Rs. 4,14,918/- is appearing as on 31.03.2024.
This would be thoroughly reconciled with reference to the physical TDS certificates as
well as actual deposits to the department in the name of the Institute from Income Tax
Portal.

An amount of Rs 10,00,000/- paid as advance to Bhubaneswar chapter on 22.11.2023
for 43rd RCC preliminary expenditure which is lying unadjusted as on 31.03.2024.

Sundry Creditors amounting to Rs. 86,803/- being unclaimed for long period is written
back.

Sundry debtors amounting to Rs 15,32,585/- are lying for more than 3 years as on 31st
March, 2024 has been written off.
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g) Other advances of Rs 13,07,101/- as on 31st March 2024 are lying in books since 2013
against which no details are available has been written off.

4. In respect of WIRC

a) Claims receivable from FDAPL of Rs 67,30,000/- as appearing in Schedule 3 —
Current Assets, is also considered fully recoverable.

b) The amount of provisions for recoverable of Rs 4,20,707/- — Current Liabilities to be
written back on being approved by the AGM since not payable. Similarly, the same
amount is incorporated in the Headquarter Account as receivable which also needs to
be written off subject to approval by the AGM.

5. In respect of NIRC

a) (i) An amount of Rs 0.99 lakhs is lying as on 31% March 2024 in the books of the
region being current account balances with the Chapters which is yet to be
reconciled.

(ii) Other Loan to Chapters of NIRC. - An amount of Rs 34.87 lakh loan has been
given to various chapters under NIRC long ago for which no confirmation has been
received from the chapters.

(iii) NIRC has the outstanding TDS demand of Rs. 1,45,710/-.

(iv) Security deposits given amounting to Rs. 1,67,690/- and advance given to
former employee amounting to Rs. 15,488/- is outstanding for more than 3 years and
considered to be doubtful

b) Prior Period Income
(1) Includes Rs. 3,39,752/- for interest on Fixed Deposit relating to previous year.

(i) Includes income of Rs. 51,000/- towards GST certificates course for the FY 2018-
19 and Rs. 7,77,000/- for placement program pertaining to the program FY 2022-23.

c) Prior Period Expenses

(i) Includes Rs. 26,56,597/- towards demand raised by the EPFO against the
enquiry u/s 14B & 7Q for the period April 2019 to July 2022 vide ref no.
DL/CPM/17428/Damages-11/7881 dated 2" January, 2023.
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6. In respect of Cochin Chapter

Contingent Liability

(i)

(i)

During the financial Year 2018-2019 there was a Sub Court order against the
Institute. These cases were filed by the neighbours of CFE claiming damage to
their building due to the construction carried out by the CFE. The decreed
amount is Rs.19,38, 785/- comprising of Rs. 13,00,000 for compensation and
Rs 6,38,755/- towards interest. Chapter filed an against this order with District
court of Ernakulum along with the appeal, a stay petition was also moved and
the District Court, Ernakulum was pleased to stay the operation of the decree on
a condition that the chapter will furnish a bank guarantee for a sum of Rs.
15,00,000/-, and the same was produced. The District Court has upheld the
verdict of the lower court and hence the institute has decided to go for appeal in
the Honourable High court of Kerala. The case has been handed over to the HQ
as directives from HQ and case is handled by advocates empaneled by the HQ
at Kolkata. An additional Bank Guarantee for Rs 543,885/- was furnished on
28th November 2023 based on the directive from the court. As the matter is in
court, the final outcome cannot be predicted with any significant probability,
Hence, no provision for contingent liabilities is being made at this stage.

In case of works contracts awarded by the Chapter for the Constructions of
Building at Chalikkavattom, Gramina Vayanasala Road, Vytilla, Ernakulam,
awarder is responsible for deduction of tax (WCT) for those works contract
involves both supply of materials and the labour. Cochin chapter is liable to
deduct and pay the works contract tax from the contractors before the payment
is made to them unless a certificate in form No.1EE is collected from respective
contractors. In the case of work contracts amounting to Rs. 75, 80, 762/- the
Form 1EE is not obtained. The works contract tax liability on the above will be
Rs- 6,06, 461/- plus the interest. The Chapter has not taken WCT registration, as
all contractors are registered with the tax department, and have agreed to submit
Form 1EE. The Chapter has retained an amount of Rs. 4,67,057/- which will be
released to contractors only after the liabilities in relation for 1EE have been
fulfilled.
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7. In respect of Bhubaneshwar Chapter

a) Closing balance of Rs. 20,94,405/- lying in Canara Bank as on 31.03.2024 includes
Finance Assistance of Rs 1,85,460 received from members for the medical treatment
of CMA student pursuing Final Course & Rs 12,58,381 for 43" Regional Council

Conference.

b) Total Value of Leave Encashment as on 31.03.2023 was Rs. 25,56,414. Against this
Rs. 4,69,840 was paid to Head Office earlier, the present fund value of which

as on
31.03.2023 is Rs.8,68,843/- and provision taken during the year for FY 2022-23 up to

31.03.2023 was Rs. 10,68,333/-. So balance amount of Rs. 6,19, 238/- has been taken
into account as per prior period leave encashment expenses.

8. Necessary adjustment entries pertaining to Regional Councils and Chapters have been
made at the time of consolidation of financial statements.

9. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to
confirm to the current year’s classification/disclosure.
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